
 
CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting – Agenda 
 

February 21, 2023 at 6:00 PM | Pooler City Hall | 100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

1 of 2 

 
    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
    
II. CALL TO ORDER 
    
III. INVOCATION 
    
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
    
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
    
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
  A. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2023 
  B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February 6, 2023 
  C. City Council Planning Retreat Minutes of February 2, 2022 
  D. City Council Planning Retreat Minutes of February 8, 2023 
  E. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for The British Pie Company 

DBA Pie Society at 1215 US Highway 80 East, Suite 100/200 
  F. Change of Business Address Notification for The British Pie Company 

DBA Pie Society at 1215 Highway 80 East, Suite 100/200 
  G. Special Event Permit Application for Citizen Pictures from February 

20-27, 2023 
  H. Special Event Permit Application for Matthew Gunn on June 3, 2023 
  I. Special Event Permit Application for S2S Facts, Inc. on July 29, 2023 
  J. Department Reports 
  1. Public Works 
  2. Finance 
  3. Fire Department 
  4. Police Department 
  5. Recreation 
  6. Planning & Zoning 
    
VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 



 

2 of 2 

  A. Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time 
  B. Proclamation for Georgia State Arbor Day 2023 
    
VIII. OLD BUSINESS 
  A. Site Plan for Nine Squares (1541 Pooler Parkway) 
    
IX. NEW BUSINESS 
  A. Conditional Use Request to Operate a Miscellaneous Manufacturing 

Business at 5212 Old Louisville Road (Public Hearing, Action) 
  B. Conditional Use Request to Operate an HVAC Business at 110 

Pipemakers Circle, Suite 101 (Public Hearing, Action) 
  C. Acceptance of Maintenance Bond for Memorial Boulevard East 

Access Road 
    
X. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
    
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 



 
CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting – Minutes 
 

February 6, 2023 at 6:00 PM | Pooler City Hall | 100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

1 of 6 

 
    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM  
  Present: Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 

Tom Hutcherson, Mayor Pro Tem 
Shannon Black, Councilmember 
Aaron Higgins, Councilmember 
Stevie Wall, Councilmember 
Karen Williams, Councilmember  
Robert Byrd, City Manager   
Craig Call, City Attorney    
Chris Lightle, Finance Officer   
Hadassa Villafana, Occupational Tax Specialist/Purchasing Supervisor   

    
Absent: John Wilcher, Councilmember  

    
II. CALL TO ORDER  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
    
III. INVOCATION  
  Dr. Shirlenia Daniel, Planning & Zoning Commissioner, gave the invocation. 
    
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
  Dr. Shirlenia Daniel led the pledge. 
    
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton announced that the City is trying to build a new library in 

Pooler. Lola Shelton-Council, Executive Director of Live Oak Public Libraries, is 
requesting that the community contact members of their local legislative 
delegation and ask them to support an outlay of $2M. The City has designated a 
property south of the eastbound lane of Hwy 80 in addition to $5M, but more will 
be needed to complete the project. Live Oak Libraries is asking for $2M in their 
name. Flyers are available for anyone interested in more information. 

    
VI. CONSENT AGENDA  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton requested a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 

written. Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to approve the consent agenda. 
 
Motion to approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 



 

2 of 6 

MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams 
NAYS:  

  A. City Council Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2023  
    

 

  B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of January 17, 2023  
    

 

  C. Special Event Permit Application for the Greater Pooler Area 
Chamber of Commerce on March 17, 2023 (requesting fee waiver)  

    
 

  D. Special Event Permit for Kandie Spence / Georgia Skin and Cancer 
Clinic on April 15, 2023  

    
 

  E. Special Event Permit Application for Pooler Juneteenth Celebration 
Run Committee, Inc. on June 10, 2023 (requesting fee waiver)  

    
 

  F. Special Event Permit Application for Pooler Juneteenth Celebration 
Committee, Inc. on June 17, 2023 (requesting fee waiver)  

    
 

    
VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS  
  

 

  A. Proclamation for the 101st Birthday of Catherine Boxxe DeWitt  
    Mayor Rebecca Benton welcomed Catherine Boxxe DeWitt and read aloud 

the Proclamation for her 101st Birthday. 
  B. Resolution R2023-02.A - Amendment to the 2023 Schedule of Fees  
    City Manager Robert Byrd asked Chief Finance Officer Chris Lightle to 

present the resolution for consideration. Councilmember Stevie Wall moved 
to approve Resolution R2023-02.A - Amendment to the 2023 Schedule of 
Fees. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wall 
SECONDER: Higgins 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
VIII. OLD BUSINESS  
  

 

  A. Site Plan for My Place Hotel at 14 Mill Creek Circle  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the site plan for consideration. Sgt. 

James Self, Pooler Police Department, was present to inform Mayor and 



 

3 of 6 

Council that all investigations requested at the previous meeting had been 
done and the police department recommended approval. Blake Heiman was 
present on behalf of the petitioner, TGC Group, to answer any questions. 
Councilmember Karen Williams moved to approve the Site Plan for My Place 
Hotel at 14 Mill Creek Circle subject to the stormwater maintenance 
agreement being recorded and submitted to the city before the pre-
construction meeting. 
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Williams 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams 
NAYS:  

  B. Site Plan for Nine Squares (1541 Pooler Parkway)  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the site plan for consideration and 

stated that this was postponed at the previous meeting because the 
petitioner was not present. Mayor Rebecca Benton called for the petitioner, 
but they were not present. Councilmember Shannon Black moved to 
postpone the Site Plan for Nine Squares (1541 Pooler Parkway) item until 
the next meeting to allow the petitioner to be present. 
 
Moved to Postpone; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Black 
SECONDER: Wall 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  

    
IX. NEW BUSINESS  
  

 

  A. Conditional Use Request for Industrial & Equipment Sales at 55 
Coleman Boulevard (Public Hearing, Action)  

    Mayor Rebeca Benton opened the public hearing. Steve Rushing, the 
petitioner, was also present representing Southeast Industrial Equipment to 
answer any questions. There being no public comment, Mayor Rebecca 
Benton closed the public hearing. Councilmember Aaron Higgins, upon 
review of the criteria, moved to approve the Conditional Use Request for 
Industrial & Equipment Sales at 55 Coleman Boulevard. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Black 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  

  B. Zoning Map Amendment for 2.55 Acres at Old Central Road from R1-
A to I-1 (Public Hearing, Action)  



 

4 of 6 

    Mayor Rebecca Benton opened the public hearing. The petitioner was not 
present. Archie T. Seabrooks, a Wildcat Dam Road property owner, 
expressed his concerns about this amendment. George Seabrooks, resident 
of 107 Old Central Road, expressed his concerns and requested to have this 
item denied. Bernell McNeil, resident of 125 Old Central Rd, expressed her 
concerns and also requested to have this item denied. Mayor Rebecca 
Benton closed the public hearing. Councilmember Aaron Higgins, upon 
review of the criteria, moved to deny the Zoning Map Amendment for 2.55 
Acres at Old Central Road from R1-A to I-1. 
 
Motion to Deny; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  

  C. Building Height Variance for Towne Place Suites on Half Moon Way 
(Public Hearing, Action)  

    Mayor Rebecca Benton opened the public hearing. Harold Young, Attorney, 
was present on behalf of the petitioner. Chris Patel, Principal of HOS 
Management, and Jay Maupin of Maupin Engineering were also present to 
answer questions. John Hayden, a resident of Savannah Quarters, 
expressed his concern about this height variance request. Lewis Dibert, a 
resident at 204 Wood Haven Ct in Savannah Quarters, expressed his 
concerns about the construction of this hotel. Mike Wilson, a resident of 201 
Lake View Drive and a representative of the Village Green Homeowner's 
Association, expressed his concerns about this height variance request. City 
Planner Brian Crooks provided input regarding the city ordinance on buffer standards. Mayor 
Rebecca Benton closed the public hearing. Councilmember Aaron Higgins, 
upon review of the criteria, moved to deny the Building Height Variance for 
Towne Place Suites on Half Moon Way. 
 
Moved to Deny; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  

  D. Site Plan for Outparcel 2, Tanger Outlets  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the site plan for consideration. Travis 

Burke from Coleman Company, representing the petitioner, Delaney 
Development, was present to answer questions. Councilmember Aaron 
Higgins moved to approve the Site Plan for Outparcel 2, Tanger Outlets. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Williams 



 

5 of 6 

AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  

  E. Site Plan for Towne Place Pooler Hotel on Half Moon Way  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the site plan for consideration and 

stated that this goes hand in hand with Item C. Harold Young, an attorney 
on behalf of the petitioner, requested to have this item withdrawn. No action 
was taken on the Site Plan for Towne Place Pooler Hotel on Half Moon Way. 
 

  F. Acceptance of Performance Bond and Final Plat for Harmony 
Townhomes  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the acceptance performance bond and 
final plat for consideration. Neil McKenzie was present on behalf of the 
petitioner to answer questions. City Attorney Craig Call expressed his 
concern about the bond. Councilmember Karen Williams moved to approve 
the Acceptance of Performance Bond and Final Plat for Harmony 
Townhomes in the amount of $2,271,716.25 subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. The bond is approved by the City Attorney with corrections to the 
names and witnesses in the document. 

2. Explanation of whether sidewalks are included. 

 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Williams 
SECONDER: Higgins 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  

  G. Sale of 2015 Ford 550 Crime Scene/Command Truck to Jones County  
    Sgt. James Self, Pooler Police Department, and Chief Wade Simmons, Pooler 

Fire Department, presented the item for consideration and requested 
approval of the sale. City Manager Robert Byrd requested to have this item 
approved subject to the City Attorney's review. Councilmember Stevie Wall 
moved to approve the Sale of 2015 Ford 550 Crime Scene/Command Truck 
to Jones County subject to the City Attorney's approval of the contract. 
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wall 
SECONDER: Black 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  

    
X. EXECUTIVE SESSION  



 

6 of 6 

  With no further public business to conduct, Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved 
to enter Executive Session. Council entered Executive Session at 7:14 p.m. 
 
Motion to Enter; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wall 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  
 
Mayor Rebecca C. Benton called the meeting back to order at 7:34 p.m. 

    
XI. ADJOURNMENT  
  Councilmember Stevie Wall moved to adjourn the meeting. 

 
Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wall 
SECONDER: Higgins 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams  
NAYS:  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Hadassa Villafana, Occupational Tax Specialist/Purchasing Supervisor 

 







) 

CITY COUNCIL 
Planning Retreat - Minutes 

February 2, 2022 at 8:00 AM I Pooler City Hall I 100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM

Present: 

Absent: 

Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 
Tom Hutcherson, Mayor Pro Tern 
Aaron Higgins, Councilmember 
Stevie Wall, Councilmember 
John Wilcher, Councilmember (via teleconference) 
Karen Williams, Councilmember 
Robert Byrd, City Manager 
Steve Scheer, City Attorney 
Craig Call, City Attorney 
Chris Lightle, Finance Officer 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 
Matt Saxon, Assistant City Manager 
Ashley Brown, Chief of Police 
Wade Simmons, Chief of Fire-Rescue 
Holmes Bell, Hussey Gay Bell 
Chris Burke, Hussey Gay Bell 

Shannon Black, Councilmember 

II. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Rebecca Benton called the retreat to order at 8:02 a.m.

III. REPORTS & DISCUSSION

A. Wastewater Treatment Plant

Holmes Bell and Chris Burke of Hussey Gay Bell presented on the

Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion project. Presentation slides are

included as part of the minutes.

B. Police Department Report

Chief Ashley Brown gave an update on Police Department operations.

Presentation slides are included as part of the minutes.

1 0/2 



) 

C. Fire Department Report

Chief Wade Simmons gave an update on Fire Department operations, to
include the progress on the new fire station. Presentation slides are included
as part of the minutes.

D. Chamber of Commerce Update

Due to the nature of the Chamber of Commerce topic, City Attorney Steve

Scheer recommended the item be tabled until the next Executive Session.

E. Topics for Discussion

Councilmember Aaron Higgins led a discussion on potential TSPLOST
projects. Mayor Pro Tern Tom Hutcherson led a discussion on the diversity
and inclusion training available to the City. Councilmember Karen Williams
led a discussion on exploring GMA's City of Ethics designation.

IV. ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Rebecca C. Benton closed the retreat at 10:57 a.m.

The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this __ 
_ day of ______ , 2023. 

Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 

Attest: 

Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

2of2 



















































































 
CITY COUNCIL 

Planning Retreat – Minutes 
 

February 8, 2023 at 1:00 PM | Grand Hyatt Buckhead | 3300 Peachtree Rd NE, Atlanta, 
GA 30305 

1 of 3 

 
    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM  
  Present: Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 

Tom Hutcherson, Mayor Pro Tem 
Shannon Black, Councilmember 
Aaron Higgins, Councilmember 
Stevie Wall, Councilmember 
Karen Williams, Councilmember  
Robert Byrd, City Manager   
Craig Call, City Attorney    
Chris Lightle, Finance Officer   
Brian Crooks, City Planner 
Chief Wade Simmons, Fire Department 
Chief Ashley Brown, Police Department 
Caroline Hankins, Director of Human Resources 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council   
Chris Burke, HGB 
Holmes Bell, HGB 
Liberto Chacon, HGB 
Stanley Hurd, EOM 
Trevor Shoemaker, EOM 

    
Absent: John Wilcher, Councilmember  

    
II. CALL TO ORDER  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton called the retreat to order at 1:00 p.m. 
    
III. REPORTS  
  

 

  A. Capital Project Report  
    Chris Burke and Holmes Bell presented an Engineering update. Their 

presentation has been provided as an attachment. 
  

  B. Finance Department Report  
    Finance Officer Chris Lightle gave the Finance Department Report. His 

presentation has been provided as an attachment. He also discussed 



 

2 of 3 

emergency/weather event funding as well as the use of Tyler Technologies' 
remote backup system.  

  C. Planning & Zoning Report  
    City Planner Brian Crooks gave the Planning & Zoning and Development 

Authority Reports. His presentation has been provided as an attachment.  
  D. Police Department Report  
    Chief Ashley Brown gave the Police Department Report. His presentation has 

been provided as an attachment.  
  E. Fire Department Report  
    Chief Wade Simmons gave the Police Department Report. His presentation 

has been provided as an attachment.  
    
IV. TRAINING SESSION  
  

 

  A. Election Year Guidelines  
    City Manager Craig Call led a training session on Election Year Guidelines. 

His presentation has been provided as an attachment.  
    
V. OPEN FORUM  
  

 

  A. Discussion Topics - Staff  
    HR Director Caroline Hankins led a group discussion on meeting times.   
  B. Discussion Topics - Mayor & Council  
    Councilmember Karen Williams shared an information sheet from a World 

Trade Center Savannah/Savannah Economic Development Authority 
program on welcoming our new South Korean neighbors to our local 
communities as part of Hyundai Motor Group Metaplant America. 
Councilmember Aaron Higgins shared a draft of GMA's Civility Pledge in 
addition to information regarding the GMA/Georgia Association of Chiefs of 
Police/Local Government Risk Management Services "Excellence in Policing" 
Program. All documents have been provided as an attachment. 

    
VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton requested a motion to enter Executive Session. 

Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to enter Executive Session at 4:25 p.m. 
 
Motion to Enter; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Williams 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
VII. ADJOURNMENT  



 

3 of 3 

  Mayor Rebecca Benton called the retreat back to order and adjourned at 4:51 
p.m. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 

 



 
CITY COUNCIL 

Planning Retreat – Agenda 
 

February 8, 2023 at 1:00 PM | Grand Hyatt Buckhead | 3300 Peachtree Rd NE, Atlanta, 
GA 30305 

1 of 1 

 
    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
    
II. CALL TO ORDER 
    
III. REPORTS 
  A. Capital Project Report 
  B. Finance Department Report 
  C. Planning & Zoning Report 
  D. Police Department Report 
  E. Fire Department Report 
    
IV. TRAINING SESSION 
  A. Election Year Guidelines 
    
V. OPEN FORUM 
  A. Discussion Topics - Staff 
  B. Discussion Topics - Mayor & Council 
    
VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
    
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 



Pooler City Council Workshop Engineering Update
February 8, 2023



City of Pooler Water Projects



Pooler Water Projects

 Hwy 80 Water Main Replacement
 Survey in Progress

 Elevated Storage Tank at Savannah 
Quarters

 Interconnection under I-16 at 
Westbrook

 Replacement of remaining 
undersized galvanized water lines in 
Old Pooler



City of Pooler Sewer Projects



Savannah Quarters Lift Station Upgrades

 Upgrade to a capacity of 4.8 MGD
 Triplex Lift Station with approximately 

14,850 LF of 18-inch force main
 8 sections installed by Horizontal 

Directional Drilling

 Currently under construction (85%)
 Green force main complete.
 Red force main in progress.

 Estimated Completion Date: 08/01/2023

 Contract Price: $6,631,946



Savannah Quarters Lift Station Upgrades

EXISTING LIFT STATIONNEW LIFT STATION



Savannah Quarters Lift Station Upgrades

NEW ELECTRICAL BUILDING



Savannah Quarters Lift Station Upgrades

WETWELL

DIESEL BYPASS PUMP
DISCHARGE PIPING



Savannah Quarters Lift Station Upgrades

1,600 LF FUSED PVC INSTALLED BY 
HDD TO PROTECT WETLANDS

1,500 LF FUSED PVC 
READY TO BE INSTALLED 

BY HDD UNDER I-16



City of Pooler Wastewater Treatment Plant

VEOLIA 500EV ZEEWEED 
MEMBRANES



Pooler WWTP 6.223 MGD Upgrade
Construction Update

• Bi-weekly Progress Meetings and On-site Construction 
Observation.

• Shop Drawing Submittals and Reviews continue.
• Pay Applications processed monthly. Pay application 

submittals include required GEFA materials such as 
certified payroll, labor interviews, stored materials invoices. 

• Project is On-Schedule and In-Budget.
• NTP (April 06, 2022)
• Division 1 Completion (September 28, 2023)
• Division 2 Completion (January 26, 2024)
• Final Completion (March 26, 2024)

• ECS performing Special Inspections (Concrete 
Reinforcement and Concrete Testing).

• Process Equipment continues to be delivered and stored on 
site. 

EFFLUENT PUMPS

FINE SCREENS



Pooler WWTP 6.223 MGD Upgrade – Current Construction

Headworks 
• Piles Complete.
• Foundation Slab Poured.
• Wall Forms Complete.
• Channel Forms in Progress.

1

2

1

2



Pooler WWTP 6.223 MGD Upgrade – Current Construction

Biological and MBR Basin 
• Piles Complete.
• Foundation Slab Poured.
• Wall Forms Complete.
• Influent and Effluent Splitter Box Forms 

in Progress.

1

2

3

1

2

3



Pooler WWTP 6.223 MGD Upgrade – Current Construction
Sludge Digester 
• Piles Complete.
• Foundation Slab Poured.
• Wall Forms in Progress.
• Sump Piping Installed. 



Holding Pond Sludge Removal
• 80% Complete.
• Estimated Completion Date: April 2023.
• 260 Trucks of Sludge Hauled to Date. 

Pooler WWTP 6.223 MGD Upgrade – Current Construction



 South Rogers Street Pump Station 
Upgrade

 New City of Pooler Public Library

Upcoming Projects



Questions?



 

 

INTERIM 

COMPARATIVE 

OPERATING 

STATEMENTS 

 
 

City of Pooler, Georgia 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Finance Department 



 

 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Interim Comparative Operating Statements (Unaudited) 

Table of Contents 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 

PAGE

COMPARATIVE OPERATING STATEMENTS

General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................................................. 1

Tree Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................ 2

Forfeiture Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.............................................. 3

ARP Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................. 4

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................ 5

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................................................................................................ 6

Water and Sewer Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position............................................ 7



 

 

 



 

     

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(UNAUDITED)



 

     



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

General Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

1 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 24,791,587.43$  21,603,967.74$ 

Licenses and permits............................................. 1,880,997.55      1,360,347.50     

Intergovernmental................................................. 719,007.71         446,722.36        

Charges for services............................................... 3,325,342.44      2,749,857.81     

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 751,475.02         878,081.79        

Investment earnings.............................................. 159,828.18         10,655.01          

Contributions and donations.................................. 208,460.42         1,667,029.66     

Miscellaneous........................................................ 106,102.94         92,033.68          

Total revenues............................................................ 31,942,801.69    28,808,695.55    3,134,106.14      10.88%

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government.......................................... 3,713,279.84      3,445,351.71     

Judicial................................................................ 407,917.29         413,964.53        

Public safety....................................................... 16,729,905.23    13,621,399.52   

Public works........................................................ 7,572,877.71      5,816,710.66     

Health and welfare............................................. 165,979.85         134,361.79        

Culture and recreation....................................... 1,964,400.79      1,691,318.44     

Housing and development................................. 904,917.38         866,285.06        

Debt service

Principal.............................................................. 422,988.70         300,115.69        

Interest............................................................... 60,868.65           31,481.92          

Total expenditures..................................................... 31,943,135.44    26,320,989.32    5,622,146.12      21.36%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures...................................... (333.75)               2,487,706.23     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ 1,216,055.21      960,825.44        

Transfers out.......................................................... ‐                      (437,851.85)       

Capital lease........................................................... 2,762,588.82      ‐                     

Sale of general capital assets................................ 143,365.66         139,097.50        

Insurance recoveries.............................................. 89,717.13           18,449.20          

Total other financing sources (uses) 4,211,726.82      680,520.29         3,531,206.53      518.90%

Net changes in fund balances.................................... 4,211,393.07      3,168,226.52     

Fund balances at beginning of year........................... 27,820,097.95    23,942,856.39   

Fund balances at end of year..................................... 32,031,491.02$  27,111,082.91$ 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Tree Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

2 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Contributions.......................................................... 821,725.00$       1,734,750.00$   

Investment earnings.............................................. 2,121.93             414.99               

Total revenues........................................................ 823,846.93         1,735,164.99      (911,318.06)        ‐52.52%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Parks................................................................... 267,126.10         141,342.20        

Total expenditures................................................. 267,126.10         141,342.20         125,783.90         88.99%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 556,720.83         1,593,822.79     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ ‐                      437,851.85         (437,851.85)       

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                      437,851.85        

Net change in fund balance....................................... 556,720.83         2,031,674.64     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 2,026,513.14      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 2,583,233.97$    2,031,674.64$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Forfeiture Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

3 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 19,602.82$         72,704.07$        

Investment earnings.............................................. 176.06                63.69                 

Total revenues........................................................ 19,778.88           72,767.76           (52,988.88)          ‐72.82%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety....................................................... 12,966.10           31,230.90          

Total expenditures................................................. 12,966.10           31,230.90           (18,264.80)          ‐58.48%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 6,812.78             41,536.86          

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 109,758.62         72,146.73          

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 116,571.40$       113,683.59$      



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

American Rescue Plan Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

4 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Intergovernmental grants...................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings.............................................. 6,542.85             1,132.84            

Total revenues........................................................ 6,542.85             1,132.84             5,410.01             477.56%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Health and welfare............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 6,542.85             1,132.84            

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 1,132.84             ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 7,675.69$           1,132.84$          



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

5 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 2,432,110.42$    1,921,650.80$   

Total revenues........................................................ 2,432,110.42      1,921,650.80      510,459.62         26.56%

EXPENDITURES

Intergovernmental:

Assistance.......................................................... 1,216,055.21      960,825.42        

Total expenditures................................................. 1,216,055.21      960,825.42         255,229.79         26.56%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 1,216,055.21      960,825.38        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... (1,216,055.21)     (960,825.38)        (255,229.83)        26.56%

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,216,055.21)     (960,825.38)       

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

6 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ 6,066,275.40$    5,055,634.89$   

Investment earnings..................................... 29,483.94           1,884.66            

Total revenues.............................................. 6,095,759.34      5,057,519.55      1,038,239.79      20.53%

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Public safety.............................................. 1,083,360.30      453,410.20        

Public works.............................................. 932,748.90         2,359,177.72     

Recreation................................................. 563,883.80         30,227.50          

Debt service

Principal.................................................... 1,190,000.00      1,160,000.00     

Interest...................................................... 309,278.66         339,526.78        

Total expenditures........................................ 4,079,271.66      4,342,342.20      (263,070.54)        ‐6.06%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ 2,016,487.68      715,177.35        

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... 4,420,409.33      2,949,988.45     

Fund balance, end of year................................ 6,436,897.01$    3,665,165.80$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Water and Sewer Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

7 
 

2022 2021

OPERATING REVENUES

Water fees............................................................. 4,345,320.38$    4,053,347.78$   

Sewer fees.............................................................. 5,522,048.63      5,198,452.62     

Miscellaneous fees................................................ 137,848.76         113,643.63        

Total operating revenues........................................... 10,005,217.77    9,365,444.03      639,773.74         6.83%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sewer and Wastewater Treatment Plant

Purchased and contracted services.................... 2,234,924.16      1,315,864.71     

Materials and supplies....................................... 1,800,568.04      1,615,140.41     

Total sewer and wastewater treatment plant....... 4,035,492.20      2,931,005.12      1,104,487.08      37.68%

Water

Personnel services and employee benefits....... 711,451.22         950,677.75        

Purchased and contracted services.................... 544,366.18         408,498.20        

Materials and supplies....................................... 2,237,191.10      1,779,787.63     

Total water............................................................. 3,493,008.50      3,138,963.58      354,044.92         11.28%

Total operating expenses........................................... 7,528,500.70      6,069,968.70      1,458,532.00      24.03%

Operating income (loss)............................................ 2,476,717.07      3,295,475.33      (818,758.26)        ‐24.84%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income...................................................... 115,553.88         15,346.60          

Insurance recoveries.............................................. ‐                      624,733.05        

Interest expense..................................................... (313,069.46)        (694,044.61)       

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses).................. (197,515.58)        (53,964.96)          (143,550.62)        266.01%

Income (loss) before capital contributions................ 2,279,201.49      3,241,510.37      (962,308.88)        ‐29.69%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees.................................................................. 560,464.28         704,750.04        

Capital cost recovery charges................................ 7,291,337.76      2,443,898.32     

Total capital contributions......................................... 7,851,802.04      3,148,648.36      4,703,153.68      149.37%

Change in net position............................................... 10,131,003.53    6,390,158.73      3,740,844.80      58.54%

Net position, beginning of year................................. 54,822,228.61    50,093,307.21   

Net position, end of year........................................... 64,953,232.14$  56,483,465.94$ 
 



2023 WINTER RETREAT



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY updates



OVERVIEW

▪ Project Updates

▪ Main Street Master Plan

▪ Unified Development Ordinance

▪ Upcoming Projects

▪ Blight & Nuisances

▪ Development Authority

▪ Other/Additional Topics



MAIN STREET MASTER PLAN

• Contracted with TSW

• Will supplement and build upon 
the 2015 Sottile & Sottile 
concept plan + recent Comp 
Plan

• Integrated Planning Approach

• Initiate & Understand

• Engage & Explore

• Guide the Future

• Implementation



MAIN STREET MASTER PLAN

• Stakeholder 
Interviews

Winter

• Public Kick-off 
Meeting

Early Spring
• Pop-up Event

• 3-day 
Workshop

Late Spring

• Final Open 
House

Mid-Summer
• Process 

Completion

• Plan Adoption

Late Summer



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORD

Combines traditional land 
use regulations and other 
development standards

Streamlines and 
coordinates all 

development processes

Removes inconsistencies 
and eliminates outdated 
policies and procedures

Easy to understand & 
user-friendly for everyone

UDO



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORD



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORD

Pooler 
2040 
Comp 
Plan

Continue to 
Update City 

Codes & 
Ordinances

Create & 
Implement 

Citywide 
Guidelines for 
Development

Encourage & 
Support More 

Diversified 
Housing Types

• Implement UDO by July 2023

• Complete in phases

• Phase 1 – Framework

• July 2023

• Phase 2 – New Components

• By end of Q2 2024

• Serve as Living Document



UPCOMING PROJECTS

Permit and Plan Review Software

Historic Resources Survey

Corridor Design Study

Green Infrastructure Study



BLIGHT & NUISANCES 



BLIGHT & NUISANCES 

Minimum Provisions

• Standards for Determining Blight

• Procedure for Identifying Properties as 
Blighted

• Increased Rate of Taxes for Blighted 
conditions

• Standards for Rehabilitating Blighted 
Property

• Decreased Rate of Taxes and Period for 
Rehabilitated Property 

• Community Redevelopment
Incentive Program - “Blight Tax”

• Art. IX, Sec. II, Para. VII, 
Sub. (d)

• Must meet minimum provisions

• Tax revenues may be
segregated into separate fund 
for community redevelopment 
purposes only

• Applies to nearly all properties 
(occupied, primary residences 
are exempt)



DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

• (Re)Appointment of members

• Participation in Main Street 
Master Plan process

• Development of Main Street
Improvement Program [Façade 
Grant/Loan]

• Regular meetings moving 
forward



ADDITIONAL TOPICS

THANK YOU



JANUARY 1-DECEMBER 31, 2022

❖ Chief  A. Brown

❖ 100 SW Highway 80

❖ Pooler, GA  31322

❖ 912-748-7333





Entries noted in RED denote a decrease in comparison to the previous year

Incident Type 2018  Total 2019 Total 2020 Total 2021 Total 2022 Total YTD% Change

Homicide 0 3 1 0 0 0%

Rape 5 7 2 7 4 -43%

Robbery 11 6 6 4 10 150%

Aggravated Assault 10 23 29 34 43 26%

Burglary 56 46 37 66 54 -18%

Larceny Auto 169 102 66 91 58 -36%

Larceny Other 484 496 390 552 585 6%

Vehicle Theft 74 46 28 38 38 0%

Arson 2 2 1 4 0 -100%

Total 811 731 560 796 792



PART I CRIMES

651 cases were assigned for 
investigation.

Out of that 651 cases, 122 arrests
were made for the year involving Part I 
crimes that were investigated. 



Investigative Assignment Case Load Closed 
(Arrest, Exceptional, Unfounded, 

Inactive)

Lieutenant J. Schmitt 127 87

Sgt. T Holland 112 74

Detective E. Dixon 136 114

Detective T. Kimmons 139 116

Detective N. Heintzman 137 88

Totals 651 479

Closed case totals 
that display a 

higher number 
than the case load 

carried are the 
result of an 

average of 10-15 
cases being carried 
into the new year 
per investigator.



Top 10 Citations:
Speeding
Speeding in Construction Zone
Expired Tag
Following Too Closely
Suspension of Vehicle Registration
Improper U-turn
Unlawful Use of Wireless Device
Failure to Change Address on License
Failure to Maintain Lane
Possession of Marijuana

11895 12690
11045 10600

11711

3941

5419

5706
5032

7589

2 0 1 8 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 0 2 2

CITATIONS V. WARNINGS
Citations Warnings

DUI’s

2018 160

2019 239

2020 237

2021 275

2022 308



2018 Total
% change

Uniform Motor Vehicle  Crashes   1390 5%

Uniform Motor Vehicle Crashes w/injuries       165 -46%

Total crashes  including private property 1861 0%

Fatalities 3

2019 Total
% change

Uniform Motor Vehicle  Crashes 1393 1%

Uniform Motor Vehicle Crashes w/injuries         134 -19%

Total crashes  including private property 1892 2%

Fatalities 6

2020 Total
% change

Uniform Motor Vehicle Crashes 1361 -2%

Uniform Motor Vehicle Crashes w/injuries 119 -13%

Total crashes including private property 1876 -.9%

Fatalities 3

2021 Total
% change

Uniform Motor Vehicle  Crashes 1843 35%

Uniform Motor Vehicle Crashes w/injuries    182 53%

Total crashes  including private property 2456 30%

Fatalities 3

2022 Total
% change

Uniform Motor Vehicle  Crashes 1901 3%

Uniform Motor Vehicle Crashes w/injuries 302 66%

Total crashes  including private property 2498 2%

Fatalities 2

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

CRASHES WITH INJURIES 

180 = Five Year Average



Month 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

January 81,375.65 87,270.92 69,568.50 70,975.07 83,660.33 35,616.87

February 81,874.38 82,824.63 84,470.26 69,052.69 36,439.98 67,423.06

March 83,200.756 75,645.43 82,054.27 53,406.19 109,500.29 74,814.84

April 66,904.26 74,469.91 92,449.82 25,107.34 97,098.51 56,775.77

May 84,390.61 66,270.68 80,102.13 4,471.34** 68,441.00 71,630.98

June 93,956.43 55,202.80 95,455.33 53,195.74 86,167.42 34,719.32

July 74,593.12 57,802.95 71,974.05 63,964.72 75,237.51 69,204.35

August 66,038.84 67,472.72 75,494.29 71,875.63 65,379.63 66,421.87

September 51,339.53 61,837.12 58,623.21 82,898.14 66,297.58 83,334.32

October 59,778.86 72,238.85 88,551.03 100,485.68 55,653.30 57,959.37

November 52,292.15 62,275.77 69,299.74 97,879.66 72,494.45 68,722.37

December 62,062.09 80,248.59 51,597.51 76,589.42 54,666.79 48,660.19

Total 857,806.68 843,560.37 919,640.14 769,901.62 871,036.79 735,283.31

REVENUE/INCOME



City Council  Building Inspections Report

 Total Permits for 2022: 

 New Single-Family Residence:   333

 New Single Family Attached Units:   113

 New Stacked Condos:   0  

 New Multi Family Units:   0

 Commercial:   122

 Total Inspection for 2021:   793

2.6 National  Average people per household

333
113

122
Single Family
Residence

Single Family Attached
Units

Stacked Condos

Multi family Units

Commercial

2022 New Business Permits: 122   

New Residential Unit Permits: 446



Res. - Single Family Res. - Single Family Attached Res. - Multi Family Commercial Condos/Stacked Houses

YEAR # of Units Permitted # of Units Permitted # of Units Permitted # of Units Permitted # of Units Permitted

2000 276 22

2001 230 23

2002 245 160 19

2003 341 80 31

2004 302 15 72 54

2005 353 55 326 71

2006 457 172 112 87 8

2007 449 165 324 107 28

2008 187 94 13 53 4

2009 171 20 16 36

2010 151 21 2 50

2011 154 18 48 100

2012 236 23 564 153 24

2013 172 85 64 189 32

2014 158 102 207 24

2015 162 93 343

2016 157 38 70 16

2017 131 62 304 78

2018 209 41 596 74

2019 202 29 89

2020 155 8 391 77

2021 310 88 316 79

2022 333 113 122





Pooler Fire - Rescue

2022 Year in Review &
Fire Department Future 

Needs



FIRE DEPARTMENT AT A GLANCE

• 6 Staffed Companies & a Battalion Chief  
mobilized out of 5 fire stations

• 4 Staffed Fire Engines (2022,2022,2016,2016) , 2 Aerial Ladder Trucks (2016,2022), a Shift 
Commander (2022)

(The following have No daily staffing but are used when necessary by personnel)
• 2 Reserve Engines (2013 & 2016)
• 1 Reserve 100’Aerial Tower (2009)
• 1 Reserve 75’ Ladder (1999)
• 1 3,000 gallon Water Tanker Truck (1999 refurbished 2020) 
• 1 Rescue Squad (2012) 
• 1 Georgia Search and Rescue Truck, 1 Brush Fire Truck & Polaris, 1 Rescue Boat



2022 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

• Finished year with NO fire related deaths 

• Added 12 new positions for Station 5

• Received 2 replacement Fire Engines & 1 
new Ladder Truck (funded by Fire Fees)

• Added 2% Salary Adjustment for Fire 
personnel

• Continuing Completed Construction & 
Opened Station 5 in November

• Replaced 2/3 of Extrication Tools “Jaws of 
Life” with new battery operated tools. 

• As part of Joint Fire/PD/Public Works 
Project received and placed in service over 
$1,500,000 in new radios & equipment

• As part of Joint Fire/PD Project purchased 
larger “used” command truck working to get 
in service

• Working to implement a new Computer 
Aided Dispatch (Countywide)



FIRE STATION 5
OPENED NOVEMBER 7TH

• Response Times cut in half !
• Responded to 127 calls in 55 days 

in service in 2022.  (800-900 pace 
for a year)

• New Ladder Truck being outfitted 
with equipment.

• Currently using reserve ladder 
truck

• Ribbon Cutting still pending 



CALL VOLUME 
2021 VS.2022

•Overall - 3.12% increase in call 
volume for the year

•5,589 total calls for 2022



2023 & BEYOND PRIORITIES

1. Employee Retention & Recruitment
2. Training Center & Building
3. Apparatus Replacement Issues
4. EMS QRV Program (3 Paramedic/Firefighter 

positions) 
5. EMS/Fire Improvements - 1 Additional Training 

position 



STRENGTHS

• Received additional 2% market 
increase for firefighters

• City held Benefit costs in check 
($0 individual insurance cost)

• Provided 5.45% in Cost of Living 
& Performance Increases

• Lack of Applicants (National 
Trend)

• Other Departments hiring Lateral 
Entry positions

• High Family Medical 
Costs/Benefits

ISSUES

EMPLOYEE RETENTION & 
RECRUITMENT



TRAINING CENTER/BUILDING

• Determine Location - 4.5-5.0 acres 
(without driver training pad)

• Phased Construction

• Initial Phase with fire building - $2.5 million

• Additional Phases - Drafting pit, Vehicle 
extrication pad, Tank truck spill/roll-over, 
Flammable liquid pond, Electric transformer 
pad, Aircraft rescue pad, Dirty 
Classroom/Locker Rooms/Garage building, 
Drivers Training pad/course

• Overall Investment $6.0 million plus



FIRE APPARATUS ISSUES

*CURRENT FLEET IS EXCELLENT*
10-12 YEARS - FRONT LINE & 5-7 YEARS AS A 

RESERVE 

ON ORDER (DUE 2024)
(24  M0NTH DELIVERY TIME)

1  LADDER TRUCK - 1999  75’ TRUCK

1  BRUSH/HIGH WATER TRUCK - 1990  SURPLUS MILITARY 
TRUCK



FIRE APPARATUS ISSUES

• 1/1/2027 NEW EMISSION REQUIREMENTS ENACTED
• Previously build & delivery was 10-12 months
• Current Delivery Times are 36-44 months! 
• Ordered Today - delivery in 2026

• Cost is up almost 30% since we ordered Engines in 2021!



EMS QRV PROGRAM

• REVIEW @ MID YEAR FOR FUNDING
• APPLYING FOR GRANT THROUGH NHTSA

WORKING with PD & GOHS

• Jan - Dec 2022 - 3,746 Medical Calls & Wrecks 
• 34.45%/ 1,291 Calls exceed 20 minutes

• 277 Calls 30-39 minutes
• 110 Calls over 40-49 minutes
• 37 Calls over 50-59 minutes
• 36 Calls over 60+ minutes
• 37 Calls turned over to Mutual Aid



EMS/FIRE TRAINING IMPROVEMENTS
TRAINING OFFICER

• Lead Instructor & Drill Master for Recruit Training classes 

• Assist in Teaching/Monitoring Daily Training Courses

• Assist in Teaching/Monitoring State Fire Academy & EMS Courses taught 
locally

• Assist in Teaching/Monitoring providing local specialty training courses where 
possible



QUESTIONS ?



 

1 of 1 

 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
Meeting Agenda Item 

 
 

TITLE: Discussion Topics - Staff 

MEETING DATE: February 8, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION:  

COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 

 







A RESOLUTION
PLEDGING TO PRACTICE AND PROMOTE CIVILITY IN THE CITY OF POOLER

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Pooler (the “Council”), the governing body of the City of Pooler, 
Georgia (the “Municipality”), recognizes that robust debate and the right to self-expression, as protected 
by the First Amendment to the United States Constitution, are fundamental rights and essential 
components of democratic self-governance; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council further recognizes that the public exchange of diverse ideas and viewpoints is 
necessary to the health of the community and the quality of governance in the Municipality; and

WHEREAS, the members of City Council, as elected representatives of the community and stewards of the 
public trust, recognize their special role in modeling open, free and vigorous debate while maintaining the 
highest standards of civility, honesty and mutual respect; and

WHEREAS, City Council meetings are open to the public and thus how City officials execute their legal 
duties is on public display; and

WHEREAS, civility by City officials in the execution of their legislative duties and responsibilities fosters 
respect, kindness and thoughtfulness between City officials, avoiding personal ill will which results in 
actions being directed to issues made in the best interests of residents; and

WHEREAS, civility between City officials presents an opportunity to set a positive example of conduct and  
promotes thoughtful debate and discussion of legislative issues, resulting in better public policy and a 
more informed electorate while also encouraging civil behavior between residents; and 

WHEREAS, civility between City officials is possible if each member of the elected body remembers that 
they represent not only themselves, but the constituents of their district and city; and

WHEREAS, in order to publicly declare its commitment to civil discourse and to express its concern for the 
common good and well-being of all of its residents, the City Council has determined to adopt this 
resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION ONE

The City of Pooler pledges to practice and promote civility within the governing body as a means of 
conducting legislative duties and responsibilities.

SECTION TWO

The elected officials of the City Council enact this civility pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous 
community by advocating for civil engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding 
solutions for the betterment of the City of Pooler.

SECTION THREE

This pledge strives to ensure that all communication be open, honest, and transparent as this is vital for 
cultivating trust and relationships.



SECTION FOUR

This pledge strives to show courtesy by treating all colleagues, staff, and members of the public in a 
professional and respectful manner whether in-person, online or in written communication, especially 
when we disagree.

SECTION FIVE

This pledge strives to ensure mutual respect to achieve municipal goals, recognizing that patience, 
tolerance, and civility are imperative to success and demonstrates the Council’s commitment to respect 
different opinions, by inviting and considering different perspectives, allowing space for ideas to be 
expressed, debated, opposed, and clarified in a constructive manner.

SECTION SIX

This pledge demonstrates our commitment against violence and incivility in all their forms whenever and 
wherever they occur in all our meetings and interactions. 

SECTION SEVEN

The City of Pooler expects members of the public to be civil in its discussion of matters under consideration 
by and before the City Council, with elected officials, staff, and each other. 

ADOPTED this ___ day of ____________, 20__.

Mayor Councilmember

Councilmember Councilmember

Councilmember Councilmember

Councilmember

ATTEST:

City Clerk

























































 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Matt Saxon 

Assistant City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL REPORT 

Report for the month of January   

Mrs. Williams, 

It gives me great pleasure to present to you, the work that our Wastewater Treatment Plant, 

Sewer, and Water Departments have accomplished since the last council meeting: 

Water: 

         

Inspected 29 Grease trap inspections. 

17 C.O inspections conducted. 

Repaired 8 residential leaks on city side of the meter. 

Replaced 34 Residential and/or commercial meter and mxu’s. 

Repaired 2” main on Parsons Ave. 

Repaired 2” water main on Rothwell St. 

Repaired chlorine system at well #3. 

       Witnessed the testing and certification of 140 backflow preventers. 

Performed 810 line locates requested by the (UPC) Utility Protection Center. 

 

Sewer & WWTP:  

EOM report attached. 

  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Matt Saxon   

Assistant City Manager 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Matthew Saxon 

Assistant City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL REPORT 

Report for the month of January 2023 

Street: 

• Continued routine maintenance throughout the city repairing potholes, sidewalks, and shoulder work.  

 

Signs: 

• Replaced 16 signs throughout the city. 

• Repaired 25 signs throughout the city. 

Street Sweeper: 

• 77 miles swept. 

 

Storm Water:  

• Completed routine residential workorders. 

• Installed 2 new culvers and dug 440’on Brady Street.  

• Completed drainage improvements at 414 & 416 Rothwell Street, culverts replaced and outfall leaking 

to I-95widened and re-grated. 

• Completed 8,374 of routine roadside ditch and outfall maintenance.  

Canal Maintenance:  

• Removed blockages along Sharon Court Canal, Garden Acres Canal, Hardin Canal, and Brighton 

Woods Outfall.  

• Repaired holes along the Water Tower Outfall. 

• Picked up piles of spoil on the off ramp of Pooler Parkway and Hwy 80. 

 

Public Works Admin: 

• Reviewed 14 sets of site plans.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 



Matthew E. Saxon  

Assistant City Manager 



 

 
  JANUARY 

2023 
Monthly Report 

480 Edsel Drive, Ste 100 
Richmond Hill, GA 31324 
912.445.0050 
www.eomworx.com 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
         
 
 
 
Content                 Section 
 
Executive Summary…………………………………………………………………………………… 1.0 
 
Wastewater Treatment ……………………………………………………………….………... 2.0  
 
Collections & Distribution….…………………….…………………………………….……….. 3.0 
 
Engineering …..…………….……………………………………………………………….………….....  4.0 
 
Administration………………………..……………………………………………………………………. 5.0 
 
Appendix …………………………………………………………………………………………………………6.0 
 
 
   



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

SECTION 1.0  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
EOM is pleased to provide this revised monthly report to the City 
of Pooler for review.  Departmental reports and requested 
supplemental data can be found enclosed.  
 
MONTH HIGHLIGHT 
 

- SEWER – Responded to (8) grinder pump calls 
- SEWER – Responded to (18) sewer blockage/leak calls 
- WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS 

▪ PO-LS-25.05 HARMONY Control Panel Repaired Alarm Light & 
Moved Control Box 

▪ PO-LS-25.05 HARMONY Control Panel Replace Hour Meter 
▪ PO-LS-19.08 SOUTHWEST QUAD Generator Replaced Battery 
▪ Remove Pump Blockages at the following stations  

o PO-LS-26.02 
o PO-LS-25.01 
o PO-LS-40.01 
o PO-LS-19.02 
o PO-LS-08.01 
o PO-LS-30.01 

- WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
▪ PO-WW-MB-00 MBR SYSTEM Replace Solenoid Valves on Trains 

1-4 
▪ PO-WW-RW-05 MECHANICAL BAR SCREEN_2 Replace Water 

Line Piping 
▪ PO-WW-PM-23 Service Air Compressor 1 Replace Pressure 

Regulator 
▪ PO-WW-GR-29 Solenoid Valve_External Spray Wash 1 Remove 

and Replace Solenoid 

 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

  
 
 
  

WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT 

Section 2.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

 

SECTION 2.0 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
 
Table 1 – WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PERMIT COMPARISON 
 

  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

  

COLLECTIONS & 
DISTRIBUTION 

Section 3.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

SECTION 3.0 
COLLECTIONS & DISTRIBUTION 
 
Table 1 – SEWER MAINTENANCE WORK ORDER REPORT 

  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

  

ENGINEERING 

Section 4.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

 

SECTION 4.0 
ENGINEERING 
SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

I. Approved Projects 
▪ Dave & Busters at Tanger Outlets 
▪ Nine Squares 
▪ Tanger Outlet Mall – Outparcel 2 
▪ Towne Place Pooler 
▪ Harmony Subdivision – Phase 7 (Revised Plans) 
▪ Mosaic Retail Center – Outparcel K (Revised Plans) 

 
II. Projects Under Review 

▪ Mosaic Gardens (Submittal #1) 
▪ Pittman Subaru (Submittal #3) 
▪ Pet Paradise (Submittal #1) 
▪ Element Hotel & Commercial Space (Submittal #4) 

 
III. Projects Waiting On Responses 

▪ Jimmy DeLoach Single Family – 1st review completed on 1/9/2023 
▪ Valvoline – 1st review completed 1/11/2023 
▪ 212 E Hwy 80 – 1st review completed 1/17/2023 
▪ Savannah Quarters Office – 1st review completed 1/27/2023 
▪ Pooler One – Pine Barren Road Entrance  - 1st review completed on 

11/22/2022 
▪ Quik Trip – 5th review completed on 11/16/2022 
▪ Pooler Parkway & Quacco Rd Widening – 2nd review completed on 

10/11/2022 
▪ Transportation Logistics Terminal Tract 2A – 1st review completed on 

11/8/2022 
▪ Sharon Court – 2nd review completed on 10/24/2022 
▪ Lot 3 Dean Forest Business Park – 3rd review completed on 10/18/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L1 – 2nd review completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L2 – 2nd Review Completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L3 – 2nd Review completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Bragg Tract Phase 1 – 1st review completed on 9/22/2022 

 
Additional Engineering Services 

 
▪ The City has authorized construction of Lift Station #21 & 22. EOM is 

currently in process procuring cost estimates and pricing for project 
construction.  

 
 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 

▪ EOM prepared and submitted the initial 2022 LMIG Bid Documents to 
the City in Summer 2022. EOM has been instructed to generate 
updated cost estimates for the proposed roadway improvement 
projects, with updated cost values reflective of the 2023 prices. 

 
  

 
 
  
 
  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

  

ADMINISTRATION 

Section 5.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

SECTION 5.0 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
BUDGET 
 

 
  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 

Section 6.0 



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

22 12 01 22 12 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 01 10

1

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

OXYGEN, DISSOLVED
(DO)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

7.9 **** ****
 mg/L

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00300  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** ****
 mg/L

  01/01 GR GRAB

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

45.4 50.3
 lb/d

**** 2.0 2.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

82.6
MO AVG

102.6
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 3.0
MO AVG

4.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3702 4288
 lb/d

**** 255 272
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PH
 

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

6.7 **** 7.0
 SU

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00400  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** 8.5
MAXIMUM  SU

  01/01 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

22.7 25.1
 lb/d

**** 1.0 1.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

138.0
MO AVG

172.0
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 5.0
MO AVG

7.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

2819 3378
 lb/d

**** 195 204
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, ORGANIC
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 3.810 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00605  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

22 12 01 22 12 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 01 10

2

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

NITROGEN, AMMONIA
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3.7 4.5
 lb/d

**** 0.2 0.2
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00610  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

11.0
MO AVG

13.8
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 0.4
MO AVG

0.6
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, KJELDAHL
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 3.930 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00625  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

NITRITE PLUS NITRATE
TOTAL 1 DET. (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 10.6 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00630  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHORUS, TOTAL
(AS P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

5.0 9.0
****

**** 0.5 0.9
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00665  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

27.5
MO AVG

34.4
WKLY AVG ****

**** 1.0
MO AVG

1.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHATE, ORTHO (AS
P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 0.641 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

04175  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

FLOW, IN CONDUIT OR
THRU TREATMENT PLANT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

2.8 2.96
 MGD

**** **** ****
 ****

0 99/99 CN CONTIN

50050  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

3.3
MO AVG

4.2
WKLY AVG  MGD

**** **** ****
****

  99/99 CN CONTIN

COLIFORM, FECAL
GENERAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 2.1 5.7
 #/100mL

0 02/DA GR GRAB

74055  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 23
MO GEO

23
WKLY GEO  #/100mL

  02/DA GR GRAB



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

22 12 01 22 12 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 23 01 10

3

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

CYANIDE, TOTAL
(AS CN)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 3.6000 ****
 ug/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

00720  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ug/L

  01/30 GR GRAB

MERCURY, TOTAL
(AS HG)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.09 ****
 ng/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

71900  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ng/L

  01/30 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, SUSPENDED
PERCENT REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
 dry ton

99.5 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81011  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

  01/30 CA CALCTD

BOD, 5-DAY PERCENT
REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

99.2 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81010  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

  01/30 CA CALCTD

SOLIDS, SLUDGE, TOT,
DRY WEIGHT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

64 ****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

78477  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

  01/30 CA CALCTD

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   
 

     
 

     



December 2022 Permit Data

Daily Data

Daily

12/1/2022 - 12/31/2022

Pooler

Pooler RainFall

Precip In/Day

Inches/Day

Pooler

Effluent

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

ReUse

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

ReUse

Turbidity NTU

NTU

Pooler

Influent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Influent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Fecal Coliform

#/100ML

12/1/2022 - Thursday 0.00 2.659 245.00 184.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

12/2/2022 - Friday 0.00 2.565 224.00 177.00 2.00 1.00

12/3/2022 - Saturday 0.00 2.413

12/4/2022 - Sunday 0.00 2.401

12/5/2022 - Monday 0.00 2.730

12/6/2022 - Tuesday 0.00 2.600 2.50

12/7/2022 - Wednesday 0.00 2.479 255.00 202.00 2.00 1.00

12/8/2022 - Thursday 0.00 2.496 224.00 166.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

12/9/2022 - Friday 0.00 2.714 244.00 181.00 2.00 1.00

12/10/2022 - Saturday 0.00 2.918

12/11/2022 - Sunday 0.00 2.989

12/12/2022 - Monday 0.02 3.023

12/13/2022 - Tuesday 0.00 2.785 4.00

12/14/2022 - Wednesday 0.00 2.755 259.00 198.00 2.00 1.00

12/15/2022 - Thursday 0.00 2.842 263.00 211.00 2.00 1.00 8.00

12/16/2022 - Friday 0.00 2.917 250.00 202.00 2.00 1.00

12/17/2022 - Saturday 0.00 2.877

12/18/2022 - Sunday 0.00 2.973

12/19/2022 - Monday 0.00 3.005

12/20/2022 - Tuesday 0.15 2.721 1.00

12/21/2022 - Wednesday 1.14 3.056 239.00 225.00 2.00 1.00

12/22/2022 - Thursday 0.13 3.028 312.00 183.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

12/23/2022 - Friday 0.10 2.960 266.00 186.00 2.00 1.00

12/24/2022 - Saturday 0.00 2.961

12/25/2022 - Sunday 0.00 2.880

12/26/2022 - Monday 0.00 2.838

12/27/2022 - Tuesday 0.00 2.562 10.00

12/28/2022 - Wednesday 0.00 2.821 270.00 222.00 2.00 1.00

12/29/2022 - Thursday 0.00 2.522 262.00 196.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

12/30/2022 - Friday 0.00 2.333 259.00 192.00 2.00 1.00

12/31/2022 - Saturday 0.00 2.674

Sum 1.54 85.497 3572.00 2725.00 28.00 14.00 29.50

Avg 0.05 2.758 255.00 194.60 2.00 1.00 2.10

Max 1.14 3.056 312.00 225.00 2.00 1.00 10.00

Min 0.00 2.333 224.00 166.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

GMean 2.10



December 2022 Permit Data

Pooler

Effluent

Nh3 N 

Ammonia

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Nitrate + Nitrite

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

TKN

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Org Nitrogen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Ortho 

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Cyanide

UG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Mercury

1631E

NG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Diss Oxygen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

pH

SU

Pooler

Solids 

Removed

Dry TON

0.12 0.54 8.52 6.97 3.80

0.12 0.52 8.37 6.85 2.00

8.51 6.91 0.00

8.09 6.99 0.00

7.93 6.97 0.00

8.51 6.83 3.90

0.17 0.65 8.52 6.83 0.00

0.12 0.65 10.60 3.93 3.81 0.64 8.75 6.65 1.90

0.16 1.43 8.73 6.75 3.90

8.71 6.84 0.00

8.63 6.93 0.00

8.07 6.90 3.80

8.31 6.89 3.80

0.15 0.74 8.41 6.85 3.70

0.19 0.75 8.30 6.95 3.60

0.17 0.35 8.40 6.99 3.60

8.98 6.86 0.00

8.81 7.03 0.00

8.64 6.80 1.90

8.19 6.85 3.70

0.18 0.27 3.60 1.09 8.73 6.84 3.70

0.13 0.16 8.61 6.86 3.80

0.15 0.17 8.49 6.86 3.70

9.22 7.04 0.00

8.98 6.88 0.00

9.58 6.90 0.00

8.78 6.96 1.80

0.28 0.20 8.76 6.77 3.60

0.14 0.21 8.74 6.98 3.80

0.21 0.26 8.51 6.94 3.70

8.70 6.87 0.00

2.28 6.90 10.60 3.93 3.81 0.64 3.60 1.09 266.48 213.54 64.00

0.16 0.49 10.60 3.93 3.81 0.64 3.60 1.09 8.60 6.89 2.00

0.28 1.43 10.60 3.93 3.81 0.64 3.60 1.09 9.58 7.04 4.00

0.12 0.16 10.60 3.93 3.81 0.64 3.60 1.09 7.93 6.65 0.00



 

 

INTERIM 

COMPARATIVE 

OPERATING 

STATEMENTS 

 
 

City of Pooler, Georgia 
For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Finance Department 



 

 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Interim Comparative Operating Statements (Unaudited) 

Table of Contents 

For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 

 

PAGE

COMPARATIVE OPERATING STATEMENTS

General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................................................. 1

Tree Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................ 2

Forfeiture Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.............................................. 3

ARP Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................. 4

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................ 5

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................................................................................................ 6

Water and Sewer Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position............................................ 7



 

 

 



 

     

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(UNAUDITED)



 

     



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

General Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 and 2022 

1 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 1,641,341.44$    874,647.42$      

Licenses and permits............................................. 90,694.50           206,316.25        

Intergovernmental................................................. 293,138.33         43,127.12          

Charges for services............................................... 300,073.41         203,612.97        

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 78,022.03           35,616.87          

Investment earnings.............................................. 43,606.62           1,018.02            

Contributions and donations.................................. 42,390.62           11,485.03          

Miscellaneous........................................................ 15,648.79           16,445.17          

Total revenues............................................................ 2,504,915.74      1,392,268.85      1,112,646.89      79.92%

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government.......................................... 206,945.33         193,971.79        

Judicial................................................................ 26,780.67           49,338.79          

Public safety....................................................... 1,048,678.31      862,318.57        

Public works........................................................ 194,917.00         106,854.68        

Health and welfare............................................. 9,108.75             2,196.48            

Culture and recreation....................................... 87,116.15           67,456.77          

Housing and development................................. 53,025.79           45,544.32          

Debt service

Principal.............................................................. 291,909.30         22,809.10          

Interest............................................................... 42,601.84           1,975.50            

Total expenditures..................................................... 1,961,083.14      1,352,466.00      608,617.14         45.00%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures...................................... 543,832.60         39,802.85          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ 99,660.82           85,378.98          

Sale of general capital assets................................ 2,150.00             ‐                     

Insurance recoveries.............................................. 45,691.40           14,267.25          

Total other financing sources (uses) 147,502.22         99,646.23           47,855.99           48.03%

Net changes in fund balances.................................... 691,334.82         139,449.08        

Fund balances at beginning of year........................... 31,322,218.97    27,820,097.95   

Fund balances at end of year..................................... 32,013,553.79$  27,959,547.03$ 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Tree Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 and 2022 

2 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Contributions.......................................................... 302,750.00$       579,488.50$      

Investment earnings.............................................. 253.77                84.72                 

Total revenues........................................................ 303,003.77         579,573.22         (276,569.45)        ‐47.72%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Parks................................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 303,003.77         579,573.22        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                      ‐                     

Net change in fund balance....................................... 303,003.77         579,573.22        

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 2,581,923.20      2,026,513.14     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 2,884,926.97$    2,606,086.36$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Forfeiture Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 and 2022 

3 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. ‐$                    7,500.00$          

Investment earnings.............................................. 18.87                  5.91                   

Total revenues........................................................ 18.87                  7,505.91             (7,487.04)            ‐99.75%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety....................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 18.87                  7,505.91            

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 101,567.07         109,758.62        

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 101,585.94$       117,264.53$      



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

American Rescue Plan Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 and 2022 

4 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Intergovernmental grants...................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings.............................................. 891.09                174.94               

Total revenues........................................................ 891.09                174.94                716.15                409.37%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Health and welfare............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 891.09                174.94               

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 7,675.69             1,132.84            

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 8,566.78$           1,307.78$          



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 and 2022 

5 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 199,321.64$       170,757.96$      

Total revenues........................................................ 199,321.64         170,757.96         28,563.68           16.73%

EXPENDITURES

Intergovernmental:

Assistance.......................................................... 99,660.82           85,378.98          

Total expenditures................................................. 99,660.82           85,378.98           14,281.84           16.73%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 99,660.82           85,378.98          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... (99,660.82)          (85,378.98)          (14,281.84)          16.73%

Total other financing sources (uses) (99,660.82)          (85,378.98)         

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 and 2022 

6 
 

2023 2022

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings..................................... 11,893.15           170.57               

Total revenues.............................................. 11,893.15           170.57                11,722.58           6872.59%

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Public safety.............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Public works.............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Recreation................................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Debt service

Principal.................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Interest...................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures........................................ ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ 11,893.15           170.57               

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... 6,378,722.94      4,420,409.33     

Fund balance, end of year................................ 6,390,616.09$    4,420,579.90$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Water and Sewer Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Month Ended January 31, 2023 and 2022 

7 
 

2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES

Water fees............................................................. 389,528.15$       352,042.22$      

Sewer fees.............................................................. 471,987.27         529,217.75        

Miscellaneous fees................................................ 15,221.64           10,829.51          

Total operating revenues........................................... 876,737.06         892,089.48         (15,352.42)          ‐1.72%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sewer and Wastewater Treatment Plant

Purchased and contracted services.................... 82,260.32           46,995.59          

Materials and supplies....................................... 31,326.33           118,591.92        

Total sewer and wastewater treatment plant....... 113,586.65         165,587.51         (52,000.86)          ‐31.40%

Water

Personnel services and employee benefits....... 56,078.01           47,566.45          

Purchased and contracted services.................... 1,879.95             2,296.57            

Materials and supplies....................................... 857.34                542.59               

Total water............................................................. 58,815.30           50,405.61           8,409.69             16.68%

Total operating expenses........................................... 172,401.95         215,993.12         (43,591.17)          ‐20.18%

Operating income (loss)............................................ 704,335.11         676,096.36         28,238.75           4.18%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income...................................................... 35,069.21           1,377.08            

Interest expense..................................................... (19,650.07)          (67,261.41)         

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses).................. 15,419.14           (65,884.33)          81,303.47           ‐123.40%

Income (loss) before capital contributions................ 719,754.25         610,212.03         109,542.22         17.95%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees.................................................................. 98,347.54           48,247.90          

Capital cost recovery charges................................ 546,777.64         156,734.41        

Total capital contributions......................................... 645,125.18         204,982.31         440,142.87         214.72%

Change in net position............................................... 1,364,879.43      815,194.34         549,685.09         67.43%

Net position, beginning of year................................. 64,126,485.57    54,822,228.61   

Net position, end of year........................................... 65,491,365.00$  55,637,422.95$ 
 







Pooler Police Department
Council Report

Tuesday February 21, 2023
January 2023 

• A total of 60 Part 1 crimes reported in the month of January. 
• From prior year 2022, there is a decrease of 3%.
• A total of 25 shopliftings reported in the month of January. 
• From prior year 2022, this is an increase of 56%.
• Total Calls for service in January were 2,225.
• From prior year 2022, this is a decrease of 9%.
• A total of 1,607 citations were issued in the month of January. 
• From prior year 2022, this is a decrease of 1%
• A total of 113 arrest were made in the month of January. 
• From prior year 2022, this is a decrease of -13%.
• A total of 26 DUI arrest were made in the month of January. 
• From prior year 2022, this is an increase of 62%.

Activity Time Period
1/1-1/31/2023

Year to Date 
2023

Year to Date 
2022

Percentage 
Change from 

21 - 22

Part 1 crimes 60 60 62 -3%
Shopliftings 25 25 16 56%
Calls for service 2,225 2,225 2,434 -9%
Citation 1,607 1,607 1,629 -1%
Arrests 113 113 130 -13
DUI arrests 26 26 16 62%



1

2

3

4

5

6 Registration opened for tennis, gymnastics and dance, as well as spring

7 Savannah Hurricanes basketball team practiced at the gym on Rogers Street.

8

1

2

 

3

4

5

1

2

3

Pooler Parks & Recreation

Monthly Report: January 2023

Recreation Department

Youth basketball games began.

Winter gymnastics session continued.

Fall baseball teams continued practicing at Pooler Park.

Pooler Gaelic football club continued practicing at complex.

Senior Center

The community center was rented each weekend in January.

The monthly TVIP class was held at the community center.

Dance classes continued.

Parks performed routine maintenance at all 5 parks, the community and senior

Parks

youth sports (baseball, softball, tee ball, soccer and volleyball)

All regularly scheduled classes continued in January.

centers, and the cemetery.



1  

City of Pooler  
Planning & Zoning Minutes 

January 23, 2023 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 

Commissioner Matt Saxon called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  
Commissioner Simmons led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Attendee Name Title Status 
Kimberly Dyer Zoning Admin./Secretary  Present 
Matt Saxon Chairman Present 
Chelsea Henneman Commissioner Absent 
Shirlenia Daniel Commissioner Present 
Falgun Patel Commissioner Present 
Wade Simmons Commissioner Present 
Mark Williams Commissioner Present 
Ashley Brown Commissioner Absent 
John Winn Commissioner Absent 
Pete Chaison Alternate Present 
Brian Crooks City Planner Present 
Jim Ward Commissioner Present 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the January 9, 2022, Pooler Planning and Zoning Commission were 
reviewed, and no corrections or amendments were noted. 
 
Result: Approved 
1-Motion: Commissioner Daniel 

   2-Second: Commissioner Patel 
Passed without opposition. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
1. Conditional Use request for Industrial & Equipment sales at 55 Coleman Blvd. 
 

Steve Rushing presented the request to the Board for their review and recommendation. The 
intent is to lease the existing building and the adjacent property to Southeast Equipment 
Company. According to Appendix A, Article IV- Zoning Districts, Table 4.1, Allowed Uses by 
Districts, Commercial and Industrial Machinery and Equipment Repair and Maintenance is only 
considered as a conditional use within a C-2 (Heavy Commercial) Zoning District. 

 
Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of the 
conditional use.   



2  

 
1- Motion: Commissioner Simmons 

   2- Second: Commissioner Williams 
   Passed without opposition.   
 

2. Zoning Map Amendment for 2.55 acres off Old Central Road from R1-A to I-1 
 

The petitioner was not present to answer any questions. The intent is to rezone the property 
to Light Industrial for lease to accommodate the surrounding businesses which are all 
warehouses. Several adjacent property owners appeared before the Board in opposition.  
 

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend denial of the zoning 
map amendment. 
 
1- Motion: Commissioner Simmons 

   2- Second: Commissioner Daniel 
   Motion passed without opposition. 
 
 

3. Building Height Variance for Towne Place Suites on Half Moon Way 
 

Jay Maupin, with Maupin Engineering, presented the request to the Board for their review 
and recommendation. The Savannah Quarters Phase 1 Development Standards have a 
maximum height allowance of 50’. The intent is to construct a 64’ hotel. Therefore, the 
petitioner is requesting a 14’ height variance. There were several adjacent property owners 
that appeared before the Board in opposition.  
 

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to deny the building height variance.  
 
1- Motion: Commissioner Daniel 

   2- Second: Commissioner Chaison 
   Motion to deny 3 to 2. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Site Plan/Landscape Plan review for Outparcel 2, Tanger Outlets 
 

Travis Burke, with Coleman Company, presented the site plan to the Board for their review 
and recommendation. The project will consist of 14,000 square foot shoe store and the 
infrastructure to support it. The development will be located adjacent to Panda Express on 
Tanger Outlets Blvd. 

 
Result:  A motion was made to recommend approval of the site plan/landscape plan.  
 
1- Motion: Commissioner Daniel 

   2- Second: Commissioner Williams 
Passed without opposition. 
 



3  

2. Site Plan/Landscape Plan review for Towne Place Pooler Hotel on Half Moon Way 
 

Jay Maupin, Maupin Engineering, presented the site plan to the Board for their review and 
recommendation. The project will consist of a five (5) story hotel with 139 rooms and the 
infrastructure to support it. Mr. Maupin stated that thee required buffer has been increase, the 
dumpster location has been moved away from the residential property. 
 

Result:  A motion was made to recommend approval of the site plan/landscape, contingent 
upon the following: 

• The proposed traffic improvements, as demonstrated in the traffic impact analysis, are 
designed to achieve the minimum standard of traffic operations. These improvements 
are being permitted separately and must both be constructed and accepted by the City 
prior to close out. The applicable traffic improvements as follows: 

o A westbound right turn deceleration lane on Blue Moon Crossing being 
proposed under this project (Walk On’s/Vet Center). 

o A modification to the southbound approach at Half Moon Way & Blue Moon 
Crossing is being proposed under the Towne Place Pooler project. This 
modification includes a right turn lane and a thru/left lane on the southbound 
approach to the intersection. 

• A complete set of the approved site development plans shall be submitted to the Cit of 
Pooler. 

• The City shall approve the variance application for the proposed building height, 
which exceeds the established development standards of the PUD. If the variance is 
not approved, the site development plan shall be resubmitted with building height 
information satisfying the applicable development standards.  

 
1- Motion: Commissioner Williams 

   2- Second: Commissioner Simmons 
Passed with Commissioner Daniel in opposition. 
 

3. Posting of a Performance Bond/Final Plat review for Harmony Townhomes 
 

Neil McKenzie, with Coleman Company, presented the final plat to the Board for their review 
and recommendation. This project will consist of 57 townhomes on approximately 7 acres.   
 

Result:  A motion was made to recommend approval to post the performance bond and 
approval of the final plat. 
 
1- Motion: Commissioner Williams 

   2- Second: Commissioner Simmons 
Passed without opposition. 
 

   Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, Commissioner Saxon asked for a motion to adjourn at  
3:35 p.m. 
 
 



4  

1- Motion: Commissioner Daniel 
2- Second: Commissioner Patel 
Adjourned without opposition. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this 24th day of January 
2023. 
 
__________________________________________________ 

 
Kimberly Dyer, Zoning Administrator/P&Z Commission Secretary 

 







City of Pooler
Single Family Residential Permits

January 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
1/6/2023 221446 Westbrook 138 Tupelo St., Lot 217 Logan Homes SC, LLC Same 51009G13009
1/6/2023 221465 Westbrook 140 Tupelo St., Lot 216 Logan Homes SC, LLC Same 51009G13008
1/6/2023 221467 Westbrook 123 Quince St., Lot 248 Logan Homes SC, LLC Same 51009G12005
1/6/2023 221470 Westbrook 125 Quince St., Lot 249 Logan Homes SC, LLC Same 51009G12006
1/3/2023 221471 Westbrook 127 Quince St., Lot 250 Logan Homes SC, LLC Same 51009G12007
1/6/2023 221472 Westbrook 141 Tupelo St., Lot 251 Logan Homes SC, LLC Same 51009G12008

1/11/2023 230034 Forest Lakes 117 Como Dr., Lot 934 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51014C10009 Yes/No
1/11/2023 230035 Forest Lakes 107 Como Dr., Lot 939 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51014C10004 Yes/No
1/11/2023 230036 Westwood Reserve 96 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 48 DR Horton Same 51010G02013
1/11/2022 230037 Westwood Reserve 94 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 49 DR Horton Same 51010G02014
1/11/2022 230039 Westwood Reserve 92 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 50 DR Horton Same 51010G02015
1/11/2022 230040 Westwood Reserve 90 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 51 DR Horton Same 51010G02016
1/11/2022 230041 Westwood Reserve 88 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 52 DR Horton Same 51010G02017
1/11/2022 230043 Westwood Reserve 86 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 53 DR Horton Same 51010G02018
1/11/2022 230044 Westwood Reserve 84 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 54 DR Horton Same 51010G02019
1/11/2022 230045 Westwood Reserve 83 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 94 DR Horton Same 51010G04018
1/11/2022 230046 Westwood Reserve 93 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 96 DR Horton Same 51010G04020
1/12/2023 230050 Forest Lakes 122 Grand View Dr., Lot 17 Liem Jian Hwee Same 51014C01017 Yes/No
1/23/2023 230092 Forest Lakes 125 Como Dr., Lot 930 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51014C10013 Yes/No

Total 19



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

January 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
1/10/2023 230015 Benton Grove Townhomes 1 Siena Ln., Lot 10A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04018
1/10/2023 230016 Benton Grove Townhomes 3 Siena Ln., Lot 10B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04017
1/10/2023 230017 Benton Grove Townhomes 5 Siena Ln., Lot 10C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04016
1/10/2023 230021 Benton Grove Townhomes 7 Siena Ln., Lot 10D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04015
1/10/2023 230022 Benton Grove Townhomes 9 Siena Ln., Lot 10E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04014
1/10/2023 230023 Benton Grove Townhomes 10 Siena Ln., Lot 12A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05006
1/10/2023 230024 Benton Grove Townhomes 8 Siena Ln., Lot 12B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05005
1/10/2023 230026 Benton Grove Townhomes 6 Siena Ln., Lot 12C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05004
1/10/2023 230027 Benton Grove Townhomes 4 Siena Ln., Lot 12D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05003
1/10/2023 230028 Benton Grove Townhomes 2 Siena Ln., Lot 12E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05002
1/10/2023 230029 Benton Grove Townhomes 24 Amalfi Ave., Lot 30A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03050
1/10/2023 230030 Benton Grove Townhomes 22 Amalfi Ave., Lot 30B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03051
1/10/2023 230031 Benton Grove Townhomes 20 Amalfi Ave., Lot 30C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03052
1/10/2023 230032 Benton Grove Townhomes 18 Amalfi Ave., Lot 30D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03053
1/10/2023 230033 Benton Grove Townhomes 16 Amalfi Ave., Lot 30E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03054
1/12/2023 230047 Westbrook 145 Holloway Hill, Lot 1086 DR Horton Same 51009R04024
1/12/2023 230048 Westbrook 143 Holloway Hill, Lot 1087 DR Horton Same 51009R04022
1/12/2023 230053 Westbrook 158 Holloway Hill, Lot 1100 DR Horton Same 51009R05125
1/12/2023 230054 Westbrook 160 Holloway Hill, Lot 1101 DR Horton Same 51009R05126
1/23/2023 230060 Benton Grove Townhomes 21 Pisa Pl., Lot 3A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02002
1/23/2023 230063 Benton Grove Townhomes 23 Pisa Pl., Lot 3B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02003
1/23/2023 230064 Benton Grove Townhomes 25 Pisa Pl., Lot 3C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02004
1/23/2023 230065 Benton Grove Townhomes 27 Pisa Pl., Lot 3D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02005
1/23/2023 230066 Benton Grove Townhomes 29 Pisa Pl., Lot 3E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02006
1/23/2023 230067 Benton Grove Townhomes 31 Pisa Pl., Lot 4A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02007
1/23/2023 230068 Benton Grove Townhomes 33 Pisa Pl., Lot 4B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02008
1/23/2023 230069 Benton Grove Townhomes 35 Pisa Pl., Lot 4C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02009
1/23/2023 230070 Benton Grove Townhomes 37 Pisa Pl., Lot 4D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02010
1/23/2023 230071 Benton Grove Townhomes 39 Pisa Pl., Lot 4E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02011
1/23/2023 230072 Benton Grove Townhomes 41 Pisa Pl., Lot 5A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02012
1/23/2023 230073 Benton Grove Townhomes 43 Pisa Pl., Lot 5B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02013
1/23/2023 230074 Benton Grove Townhomes 45 Pisa Pl., Lot 5C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02014
1/23/2023 230075 Benton Grove Townhomes 47 Pisa Pl., Lot 5D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02015
1/19/2023 230079 Benton Grove Townhomes 11 Siena Ln., Lot 11A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04012



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

January 2023

1/19/2023 230086 Benton Grove Townhomes 13 Siena Ln., Lot 11B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04011
1/19/2023 230087 Benton Grove Townhomes 15 Siena Ln., Lot 11C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04010
1/19/2023 230088 Benton Grove Townhomes 17 Siena Ln., Lot 11D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04009
1/19/2023 230089 Benton Grove Townhomes 19 Siena Ln., Lot 11E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D04008
1/19/2023 230093 Benton Grove Townhomes 18 Siena Ln., Lot 13A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05011
1/19/2023 230094 Benton Grove Townhomes 16 Siena Ln., Lot 13B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05010
1/19/2023 230096 Benton Grove Townhomes 14 Siena Ln., Lot 13C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05009
1/19/2023 230097 Benton Grove Townhomes 12 Siena Ln., Lot 13D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05008
1/19/2023 230099 Benton Grove Townhomes 28 Siena Ln., Lot 14A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05017
1/19/2023 230100 Benton Grove Townhomes 26 Siena Ln., Lot 14B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05016
1/19/2023 230101 Benton Grove Townhomes 24 Siena Ln., Lot 14C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05015
1/19/2023 230102 Benton Grove Townhomes 22 Siena Ln., Lot 14D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05014
1/19/2023 230103 Benton Grove Townhomes 20 Siena Ln., Lot 14E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D05013
1/23/2023 230104 Benton Grove Townhomes 49 Pisa Pl., Lot 5E Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02016
1/24/2023 230105 Westbrook 153 Holloway Hill, Lot 1082 DR Horton Same 51009R04028
1/24/2023 230106 Westbrook 151 Holloway Hill, Lot 1083 DR Horton Same 51009R04027
1/24/2023 230107 Westbrook 149 Holloway Hill, Lot 1084 DR Horton Same 51009R04026
1/24/2023 230108 Westbrook 147 Holloway Hill, Lot 1085 DR Horton Same 51009R04025
1/24/2023 230109 Westbrook 162 Holloway Hill, Lot 1102 DR Horton Same 51009R05127
1/24/2023 230110 Westbrook 164 Holloway Hill, Lot 1103 DR Horton Same 51009R05128
1/24/2023 230111 Westbrook 166 Holloway Hill, Lot 1104 DR Horton Same 51009R05129
1/24/2023 230112 Westbrook 168 Holloway Hill, Lot 1105 DR Horton Same 51009R05130
1/30/2023 230115 Benton Grove Townhomes 51 Pisa Pl., Lot 6A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02017
1/30/2023 230116 Benton Grove Townhomes 53 Pisa Pl., Lot 6B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02018
1/30/2023 230117 Benton Grove Townhomes 55 Pisa Pl., Lot 6C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02019
1/30/2023 230118 Benton Grove Townhomes 57 Pisa Pl., Lot 6D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02020
1/30/2023 230124 Benton Grove Townhomes 59 Pisa Pl., Lot 6D Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02021
1/30/2023 230125 Benton Grove Townhomes 61 Pisa Pl., Lot 7A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02022
1/30/2023 230126 Benton Grove Townhomes 63 Pisa Pl., Lot 7B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02023
1/30/2023 230127 Benton Grove Townhomes 65 Pisa Pl., Lot 7C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02024
1/30/2023 230133 Benton Grove Townhomes 71 Pisa Pl., Lot 8A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02025
1/30/2023 230134 Benton Grove Townhomes 73 Pisa Pl., Lot 8B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02026
1/30/2023 230135 Benton Grove Townhomes 75 Pisa Pl., Lot 8C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D02027
1/30/2023 230150 Benton Grove Townhomes 34 Naples Ln., Lot 19A Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03002
1/30/2023 230151 Benton Grove Townhomes 32 Naples Ln., Lot 19B Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03003
1/30/2023 230152 Benton Grove Townhomes 30 Naples Ln., Lot 19C Dream Finders Homes Same 50017D03004



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

January 2023

Total 70



City of Pooler
Commercial Permits

January 2023

Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Type/Project PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
1/18/2023 221409 1029 W. Hwy 80 S.D. Clifton Construction Inc. Henbell Pooler HFT, LLC Harbor Freight 5001602002
1/23/2023 221529 810 Towne Center Blvd Units 112-113 Chin Ho Yi David Lin Sushi Restaurant Buildout 50017C02054
1/30/2023 230025 1 Godley Station Blvd. A-101 Stephen Remler Construction Autumn Adams Skinny Salads Buildout 50017B03010

 

Total 3   



Misc. Permits January 2023
Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Project Type PIN # Flood Zone
1/30/2023 221464 113 Pickett Fence Ln EMPWR Solar Rob Romano Electrical
1/17/2023 221524 114 Coopers Rise JDH Decks and Fences Naponee Buckman 4' Black Aluminum Fence
1/9/2023 221526 126 Como Dr. Generator Supercenter Tim Floyd Electrical
1/3/2023 221530 142 Old Pond Cir. Thompson & Thompson Elise Romano Mechanical
1/3/2023 221533 213 Park Chase JDH Decks and Fences Joe Miller 4' Black Aluminum Fence
1/3/2023 221534 124 Harvest Hill JDH Decks and Fences Michelle Haynes 4' Black Aluminum Fence
1/3/2023 221535 124 Champlain Dr. JDH Decks and Fences Lashonda Brownlee Moving Fence Over 3.7'
1/3/2023 221536 126 Grand View Dr. JDH Decks and Fences Colin Stewart Black Aluminum Fence
1/3/2023 221537 254 McQueen Dr. JDH Decks and Fences Jodi Caggigie Black Aluminum Fence
1/3/2023 230002 1501 Pine Barren Rd. JSC Systems, Inc North Point Industrial LLC Emergency Responder Radio

1/12/2023 230003 108 Sussex Retreat The Dewitto-Tilton Group Roger Patel Sunroom with screen porch 51009G01038
1/3/2023 230004 11 Coleman Blvd. Unit C Champion Fire Protection DHL International Fire Sprinkler System

1/11/2023 230005 125 Legends Rd. White Electrical Sammy Jackson Electrical
1/3/2023 230006 105 Redfield Dr. Prolectric Electrical Contractors Henry Singleton Electrical

1/17/2023 230010 139 Harvest Hill JDH Decks and Fences Kenneth Jaskier 4' Black Aluminum Fence
1/17/2023 230012 507 Herrin Ct. Dyess Air & Plumbing David Allen Plumbing 
1/9/2023 230013 92 Coopers Ln. Mr. Electric Chinikqua Beard Electrical

1/17/2023 230018 2 Woods Way JDH Decks and Fences Patrice Elmore 6' Vinyl Privacy Fence
1/9/2023 230019 217 Holly Ave. Ashton Pritcher Same Electrical
1/9/2023 230020 111 Coach House Square Comfort Air Millie Holiday Mechanical

1/12/2023 230055 122 Canal St. Uit 107 AAA Sign Co. Inc Ameridevelopment Pooler LLC Wall Sign
1/13/2023 230057 10 Wyndy Ct. JDH Decks and Fences Tyrone Wright 5' Black Aluminum Fence
1/19/2023 230058 407 Middleton St. Quality Decks and More Chris Coleman 6' Privacy Fence
1/26/2023 230059 163 Somersby Blvd. Comfort Air Jakob Anderson Mechanical
1/13/2023 230061 1000 Pine Barren Rd.Units 101-102 AAA Sign Co. Inc Pooler Parkway Pine Barren 2 Wall Signs
1/13/2023 230062 128TWR Pipemakers Cir. Ericsson American Tower Cell Tower Collocate 50017B06088
1/19/2023 230082 110 Harvet Hill Halleluyah Restoration Denise Wayne 4' Black Aluminum Fence
1/18/2023 230083 113 Tahoe Dr. Tara Lock Same 6' Vinyl Privacy Fence
1/19/2023 230085 205 N. Skinner Ave. Gregory Roy Same Interior Renovation 5000612009
1/19/2023 230095 249 Siver Brook Cir. Eugene Albert Same Storage Building
1/19/2023 230098 100 Populus Dr. Custom Sign Factory Novare Group Monument Sign
1/20/2023 230113 126 Pickett Fence Ln. JDH Decks and Fences Nadine Borras 6' and 4' Vinyl Fence 
1/20/2023 230114 605 W Hwy 80 Ram Jack of SC Ameris Bank Foundation 
1/23/2023 230119 5 Wildcat Dam Rd. Young's Electric George Seabrooks Electrical
1/24/2023 230120 313 N. Rogers St. Ronald Morrison Same Loft Addition to Storage Bldg 5000604003
1/27/2023 230122 1 Godley Station Blvd unit A-101 Doug Bean Signs Evans Best LLC Two Wall Signs
1/24/2023 230123 100 Populus Dr. Custom Sign Factory Novare Group Tenant Panels
1/26/2023 230128 166 Village Lake Dr. Reid Electric LLC Ria Andrae Electrical
1/26/2023 230129 24 Glenwood Ct. Thompson & Thompson Justin Arreguin Mechanical
1/26/2023 230130 148 Barrington Rd. Owens Contracting Robert Strange 6' Vinyl Privacy Fence
1/26/2023 230138 266 McQueen Dr. Privacy Fencing Inc Andrew Lazzaro 4' Black Aluminum Fence
1/30/2023 230146 200 Blue Moon Xing Ace Remodeling Services Inc Gary Mankin Modifications to Entry Way 5100901045

Total 42



City of Pooler
Mobile Home Permits

January 2023

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Mobile Home Installer Owner

Total 0



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

January 2023
Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner

1/11/2023 210179 Westbrook 213 Park Chase, Lot 723 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes, LLC Same
1/11/2023 210433 Westbrook 142 Bramswell Rd., Lot 731 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes, LLC Same
1/11/2023 220601 Westbrook 100 Tupelo St., Lot 236 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes, LLC Same
1/12/2023 221046 2005 Pooler Pkwy Take 5 Oil Change Ecker Construction Inc. Sean O'Brien
1/13/2023 220932 Westwood Reserve 39 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 81 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/13/2023 220670 Westwood Reserve 37 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 80 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/13/2023 220660 Westwood Reserve 32 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 73 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/13/2023 220659 Westwood Reserve 34 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 72 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/13/2023 211353 Westwood Reserve 10 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 27 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/17/2023 220633 Forest Lakes 118 Como Dr., Lot 917 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
1/17/2023 220380 Ellis Park 102 Buttermere Way, Lot 324 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/19/2023 221116 2201 Pooler Pkwy, Unit 400 Crumbl Cookies Buildout The Dewitt-Tilton Group Crumbl Cookies
1/20/2023 210085 Westbrook 221 Park Chase, Lot 727 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes, LLC Same
1/20/2023 220652 Westbrook Glen 128 Harvest Hill, Lot 837 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
1/20/2023 220862 Westbrook Glen 169 Harvest Hill, Lot 819 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
1/20/2023 220953 101 St. Joe's Candler Dr. Medical Office Buildout Vanderbrink Paasch Builders St. Joseph's Candler
1/23/2023 220542 Clubouse Residential 32 Golf Dr., Lot 488 Townhome Logan Homes SC LLC Same
1/23/2023 210081 300 Seabrook Pkwy Bdg B Warehouse Evans General Contractors Savannah Green II Owner, LLC
1/23/2023 220485 Westwood Reserve 28 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 75 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/23/2023 220459 Westwood Reserve 305 Merganser Dr., Lot 44 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/23/2023 211132 125 Southern Junction Blvd., Bldg 100 Office Building Forest City Contracting Development Associates Inc
1/23/2023 220234 125 Southern Junction Blvd., Ste. 101 Office Buildout Forest City Contracting Development Associates Inc
1/24/2023 220589 107 Grand Central Blvd. Ste. 204 Interior Remodel David Aaron Roberts Centruy Communities Inc.
1/24/2023 220019 Hunt Club 313 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 607 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
1/24/2023 220236 300 Seabrook Pkwy Office Buildout Evans General Contractors Savannah Green II Owner, LLC
1/24/2023 211069 301 Seabrook Pkwy Office Buildout Evans General Contractors Savannah Green II Owner, LLC
1/24/2023 220701 Forest Lakes 124 Como Dr., Lot 920 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
1/25/2023 220649 Westbrook Glen 157 Harvest Hill, Lot 813 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
1/26/2023 211278 Hunt Club 342 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 620 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
1/26/2023 220488 210 Grand Central Blvd. Grocery Store Buildout Lammons Construction Sam Rentz
1/30/2023 220662 Westwood Reserve 31 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 77 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/30/2023 220658 Westwood Reserve 42 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 71 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same

Total 32



Monthly Report
January 2023

INSPECTORS
Scott MacPherson 174 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Frank Garza 469 Inspections (Included in Salary)

Total Inspections: 643 Inspections



STATE OF GEORGIA     ) 
COUNTY OF CHATHAM ) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 2, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE 
CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO SET 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

THE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS OF THE CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA, 
do hereby ordain as follows: 

I. 
Chapter 2, Section 2-31 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Pooler is hereby 

amended by deleting the strikethrough text and adding the underlined text as follows: 

Sec. 2-31. Meetings. 

(a) The regular meetings of the aldermanic board Mayor and City Council shall be held
at the city hall on the first and third Monday of each month, at 6:00 p.m. 4:00 p.m.,
except when such day is a legal holiday observed by the city, in which case the
regular meeting shall be held on the following day at the same time and place. The
aldermanic board Mayor and City Council may change the day and time for a
regularly scheduled meeting by resolution majority vote during any regularly
scheduled or specially called meeting.

(b) Special meetings of the aldermanic board Mayor and City Council may be called
by either the mMayor or any four aldermen Councilmembers upon 48 hours' notice
to all the aldermanic board Mayor and all City Council members. This notice may
be waived by all members of the aldermanic board the Mayor or any
Councilmember. Notice to the public of special meetings shall comply with state
law regarding open meetings.

II. 
This ordinance or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed. 

III. 
This ordinance shall be deemed adopted upon its approval by the Mayor and 

Council members of the City of Pooler. The effective date of this ordinance after 
approval shall be May 1, 2023.

ADOPTED this _______ day of _______________, 2023. 

First Reading: __________________  Second Reading: __________________



Attest: 

_____________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, City Clerk 

_____________________________
Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

NOW, THEREFORE,

Arbor Day is observed throughout our nation and across the world;
participating in Arbor Day activities promotes civic participation and 
highlights the importance of planting and caring for trees and vegetation;

the City of Pooler is committed to maintaining its natural trees and 
resources, demonstrated by Mayor and City Council’s constant support 
of beautification projects and the enactment and enforcement of codes 
specifically created to protect vegetation; and

the City of Pooler, acting in the best interests of its citizenry, regard these 
enhancements as high priorities for enjoyment in the present and for 
providing an opportunity to convey to future generations the value of land 
and stewardship;

in consideration of requests received from the community to celebrate 
Arbor Day; be it proclaimed that the Mayor of Pooler, Georgia hereby 
recognizes February 28, 2023 as Arbor Day in the City of Pooler, Georgia 
and urges all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day by supporting efforts to 
protect trees and woodlands and by planting trees to promote the well-
being of this and future generations.

Approved by the Mayor of Pooler on this 21st day of February 2023.

PROCLAMATION

2023 Georgia State Arbor Day

Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor

Kiley Fusco, Clerk of  Council

ATTEST:
































































	I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. CALL TO ORDER
	III. INVOCATION
	IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	VI. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2023
	6A_City Council Meeting_2023-02-06_Minutes_draft

	B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February
	6B_City Council Meeting_2023-02-06_Executive Session Affidavit_executed

	C. City Council Planning Retreat Minutes of February 
	6C_City Council Planning Retreat Minutes of February 2, 2022

	D. City Council Planning Retreat Minutes of February 
	6D_City Council Meeting_2023-02-08_Planning Retreat_Minutes_draft

	E. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for The Bri
	6E_Alcoholic Beverage License Application for The British Pie Company DBA Pie Society at 1215 US Highway 80 Ea

	F. Change of Business Address Notification for The Br
	6F_Change of Business Address Notification for The British Pie Company DBA Pie Society at 1215 Highway 80 East

	G. Special Event Permit Application for Citizen Pictu
	6G_Special Event Permit Application for Citizen Pictures from February 20-27, 2023

	H. Special Event Permit Application for Matthew Gunn 
	6H_Special Event Permit Application for Matthew Gunn on June 3, 2023

	I. Special Event Permit Application for S2S Facts, In
	6I_Special Event Permit Application for S2S Facts, Inc. on July 29, 2023

	J. Department Reports
	1. Public Works
	6J1_Public Works

	2. Finance
	6J2_Finance

	3. Fire Department
	6J3_Fire

	4. Police Department
	6J4_Police

	5. Recreation
	6J5_Recreation

	6. Planning & Zoning
	6J6_Planning & Zoning



	VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS
	A. Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time (First
	7A_Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time_1

	B. Proclamation for Georgia State Arbor Day 2023
	7B_Proclamation_2023-02-28_Georgia State Arbor Day


	VIII. OLD BUSINESS
	A. Site Plan for Nine Squares (1541 Pooler Parkway)
	8A_Site Plan for Nine Squares (1541 Pooler Parkway)


	IX. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Conditional Use Request to Operate a Miscellaneous
	9A_ Conditional Use Request to Operate a Miscellaneous Manufacturing Business at 5212 Old Louisvi

	B. Conditional Use Request to Operate an HVAC Busines
	9B_ Conditional Use Request to Operate an HVAC Business at 110 Pipemakers Circle, Suite 101 (Publ

	C. Acceptance of Maintenance Bond for Memorial Boulev
	9C_Acceptance of Maintenance Bond for Memorial Boulevard East Access Road


	X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	XI. ADJOURNMENT



